
1        

September 25, 2013
MINUTES:  THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, Town of Hamden, held a Public Hearing and Regular 
Meeting on Thursday, September 19, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the 3rd Floor Conference Room, Hamden Government 
Center, 2750 Dixwell Avenue, Hamden, CT. with the following results: 

Commissioners in attendance: Jeff Vita, Chair
Wayne Chorney 
Fran Nelson 
Elaine Dove
Suzanne Carroll sitting for Bill Reynolds

 
 

Staff in attendance: Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner
Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney
Holly Masi, Zoning Enforcement Officer
Stacy Shellard, Commission Clerk

 Sotonye Otunba-Payne, Stenographer

Mr. Vita called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., reviewed the agenda and meeting procedures, and the panel 
introduced themselves. 

A.   Public Hearing

1) 13-6503  27 Beverly Rd, Requesting a variance: Section 220, Table 2.1 to allow 41.85% impervious 
   coverage where only 30% is allowed for a screen porch & a shed. R-4 zone, Joseph DeRisi, 
   Applicant.

Mr. Joe DeRisi, Applicant, addressed the Commission and stated that the proposed porch shown on the plan 
already exists.  A variance for the porch had been granted several years ago.  Mr. DeRisi reviewed the application 
and increasing the impervious surface by 1.2 percent.  Ms. Holly Masi, Zoning Enforcement Officer, advised the 
Commission that the lot is small and the existing structures and paving creates the need for the variance.  Mr. 
DeRisi said that the shed will be placed on blocks with drip line infiltration along the back with an 18 inch gravel 
strip.  Mr. Vita asked if the structure would be considered impervious because it will be placed on blocks.  Ms. 
Masi replied that it is better to error on the side of caution and consider the structure impervious.  Mr. Chorney 
asked if the shed would need to be anchored down and Ms. Masi replied that the Building Department would need 
to answer his question.  



2        

Mr. Vita asked for comments in favor of the application.  There was none.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments against the application:

Ms. Christiane Draeger, 122 Russell Street, addressed the Commission and stated that the applicant is requesting to 
build a permanent structure three feet from the property line.  She asked what the hardship is and what the structure 
would be used for.  

Ms. Stephanie Slatery, Owner, addressed the Commission and stated that the shed would be used for storage.  Mr. 
DeRisi said that the 6 foot by 10 foot shed would be located four feet from the rear property line and a minimum of 
three feet from the side property line.  He stated that the shed can be moved further away from the property line if 
necessary.  

Ms. Slatery said that her yard is terraced and it would have to be changed to have a level surface.  She noted that 
the property slants eight percent away from the abutting property.  Ms. Draeger stated that if the intended purpose 
of the shed is for storage that it will be used for commercial use.  She asked if the need for the shed is only for 
storage why could the property owner not use the existing two car garage.  Ms. Slatery explained that half the 
garage is used for the storage of wood and she would like to be able to use the other side for her car.  Ms. Draeger 
stated that the wood can be stored outside.  She said that she would like Spring Glen to remain green and there is 
no need for an additional building to cover more surface area.  

Ms. Slatery stated that she was not aware of any issues with her neighbor and she planted eight trees in the yard.  
Mr. Vita asked if the shed could be placed in another location.  Ms. Slatery replied that she would have to cut down 
some trees.  Ms. Masi explained that if the property owner were to remove some of the paved driveway and make it 
pervious then there would not be a need for a variance.  

Mr. Chorney asked what the hardship is.  Mr. Vita said it would be the location because of the topography of the 
lot.  Ms. Slatery stated that any where they placed the shed would make the amount of impervious surface over the 
allowable amount.  She said that she is in need of more storage.  Mr. Nelson noted that the hardship is also the size 
of the lot.  Ms. Draeger asked where the hardship was because the garage can be used for storage.  Mr. Vita said 
that the amount of impervious surface makes the lot non-conforming and anything placed on the lot would require 
a variance.  Ms. Slatery stated that most of her neighbors have storage sheds.  She is following the correct 
procedure to put in the shed which is being made out of reclaimed materials.  

Mr. Vita closed the Public Hearing.  

   2) 13-6505  200 Skiff St, Requesting a variance: Section 550.2.7(a) to permit a 3rd pylon sign where only 
   one is permitted. T-5 zone, Skiff Street II, LLC, Applicant.

Mr. Bernard Pellegrino, addressed the Commission and reviewed the application.  He reviewed the history of the 
original sign and size.  He also reviewed the previous variance applications and the hardships because of the sign 
requirements for the Chevrolet, Mazda and Isuzu dealerships.   He explained the location frontage and the size of 
the proposed sign.  Mr. Vita said that because of the location of the dealership, the signs give notice to the vehicles 
traveling to the site where the entrance is located.  Mr. Pellegrino further discussed with the Commission the 
location and size of the proposed sign.  

Mr. Lee Partyka, Owner, addressed the Commission and stated that the Town wanted the sign to be small.  Mr. 
Nelson questioned the size of the sign because of the size of the dealership.  Mr. Partyka feels the sign does not 
need to be big and is in keeping with the Town's zoning regulations.  Mr. Chorney asked if the location of the Isuzu 
dealership on the property will require an additional curb cut.   Mr. Partyka replied no and that the dealership was 
located to the rear of the building.  



3        

Mr. Vita asked for comments in favor and against the application.  There was none.  

Mr. Vita closed the Public Hearing.  

   3) 13-6506  2209-2215 State Street, Requesting variances: Section 370, Table 3.4, to allow 85% 
   impervious coverage on a commercial lot where 80% is allowed, to allow a lot width of 114.13 
   ft where 100 ft is permitted for a residential lot, and to allow a frontage build-out of 31%  
   where 60% is required for a commercial lot.  T-4 zone, Gerald Ryan, Applicant.

Mr. Gerald Ryan, Attorney addressed the Commission and said that a concern was raised with regard to where the 
required public hearing sign was posted.  The sign was posted inside the window of the store and is visible from the 
street.  Mr. Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner,  asked how far from the street is the window and Mr. Ryan replied 
thirty feet.  Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney discussed the zoning regulation for the placement of the sign 
with Mr. Ryan and the Commission.  Mr. Lee asked if the abutter letters had been sent and Mr Ryan replied yes.  
Mr. Ryan stated that his client had spoken with the two neighbors and they did not have any issues with the 
application.  Ms. Dove asked what was being done to the property.   Mr. Ryan stated that the owner would like to 
split the property so that if the store is sold he can remain in the home.  Mr. Nelson asked if the property as it exists 
is non-conforming and Mr. Ryan replied yes.  Mr. Lee explained that the public hearing sign is supposed to be 
visible from the street.  Mr. Ryan stated his understanding that the placement of the sign would allow an appeal.  It 
was determined that the application would go forward.  

Mr. Ryan reviewed the application and site.  He noted that there is a pending lot split application.  Ms. Dove asked 
if the house is a two family and Mr. Ryan replied yes.  Mr. Chorney asked for the history of the property.  Mr. 
Ryan said his client bought the house 30 years ago and no changes have been made to it.  

Mr. Vita asked if the T-4 zone allows a residential/commercial split.  Mr. Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner, 
stated that the T-4 zone allows the uses on the same property or separate properties.  Ms. Dove said two family 
homes are allowed in the T-4 zone.  

Mr. Chorney asked what the hardship is.  Mr. Ryan stated that the hardship is the ability to sell the site as it stands.  
His client would have to sell both the business and the home.  In the future, the owner would like to sell the 
business and remain in the home.  Mr. Ryan noted that the owner is an older gentleman.  

Mr. Vita asked if Mr. Ryan would accept a condition that the house must remain a two family and Mr. Ryan replied 
yes.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments in favor and against the application.  There was none. 

Mr. Vita closed the Public Hearing.  

  4) 13-6507  654 Gilbert Ave, Requesting a variance: Table 6.1, Section 652 to permit a three family home 
   where only a single family is permitted.  R-4 zone, MDM Investment Properties, LLC, 
   Applicant

Mr. Bernard Pellegrino, Attorney, addressed the Commission and reviewed the site and the history of the house.  
He said that Mr. DiMonico purchased the house in 2010.  At the time of the purchase, he believed the house to be a 
legal three family home because there were three families living there.  A notice of violation was received from 
Ms. Holly Masi, Zoning Enforcement Officer, because it was not a legal three family house.  Mr. Pellegrino stated 
that it had been used as a three family home for 30 years.  He was unable to determine if any zoning permits had 
been issued to determine it a three family home.  The tenant in the third unit has left and the unit has been 
unoccupied for two years.  Mr. Pellegrino said that the variance is being requested to allow a three family home.  
There will be no changes to the exterior of the house.  The hardship is that the space as it sits is unusable under 



4        

section 726.1 of the zoning regulations.  Mr. Pellegrino advised the Commission that a third dwelling unit is the 
best possible use of the space and will not change the character of the neighborhood.  He feels he purchased the 
house in good faith believing it was a three family.  

Mr. Vita asked if the Assessor had the house as a three family.  Ms. Masi said that the Assessor had brought to her 
attention that the third dwelling unit was not permitted.  She had sent a notice of violation to the previous 
homeowner who went before the ZBA and was denied the request to allow a three family home.  Mr. Vita asked if 
the variance was denied prior to the sale of the house and Ms. Masi replied yes.  Ms. Masi explained that when the 
house was sold no one came to her to ask for a letter of zoning compliance.  The listing for the sale of the house 
was for a three family home.  Ms. Masi stated that when she contacted the new owner and explained the history of 
the property he was cooperative and agreed not to use the third dwelling unit.  Ms. Masi said that the prior owner 
did have knowledge of the violation.  Mr. Vita asked if the house is being taxed as a three family home.  Ms. Masi 
replied that it was because the Assessor incorporated the house as it stands into the Town records.  She noted that 
the Building Department will want to make sure that the house as it stands meets the building codes.  

 Mr. Chorney asked if a title searcher should have found that the home was not a three family.  Mr. Pellegrino 
stated no because it was not recorded on the land records.  Mr. Lee explained that variances that are denied do not 
get filed on the land records.  Mr. Chorney said the previous owner was fraudulent in not advised the prospective 
homeowner.  Mr. Pellegrino said that the sale as a three family home was misrepresented and the issue is with the 
former owner.  

Mr. Mario DiMonico, 1180 Dunbar Road, addressed the Commission and reviewed the third floor apartment 

Mr. Chorney said that many older homes incorporated a third floor into a second floor apartment.  Mr. Pellegrino 
stated that the third floor is a separate unit.  Mr. Chorney would like to see the documents as to how the third floor 
apartment came about.  Ms. Masi stated that the building department did not have any permits.  Mr. Chorney asked 
if an R-4 zone allows multi-family houses and Ms. Masi replied no.  Ms. Dove asked if this house was approved as 
a two family home.  Mr. Lee stated that the house pre-dates the zoning regulations.  Mr. Pellegrino said that 
building permits may have been issued prior to zoning for two family homes.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments in favor of the application.  There were none.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments against the application:

Mr. William Burns, 297 Dunbar Hill Road, President of the Dunbar Hill Neighborhood Association, addressed the 
Commission and stated that this house has come before the Association because of issues with parking on the street 
causing traffic issues.  He said that there is also a blight issue at the property.  Mr. Burns feels that good faith is 
good, it however, does not replace good research.  He noted that an R-4 zone only allows single family homes, and 
a lot of money was spent by the Town to amend the zoning regulations.   He does not feel it would be good to 
allow the three family home and it is an illegal use of the property.  Mr. Burns reviewed the history of the property. 
He stated that if variance is approved it would open a pandora's box in the entire town.  The quality of life will be 
affected.  Mr. Burns would like to see action taken on the previous homeowner for misrepresentation.  He is 
opposed to the application. 

Mr. Donald Lynch, 561 Gilbert Avenue, addressed the Commission and stated that he is against the application.  
He does not want to see the neighborhood become another West Haven where people purchase single family 
homes and make them multi-family, which reduced the surrounding homes values.  He purchased his home in a 
single family neighborhood and does not want to see it lose value.  He feels that allowing a three family home 
would change the face of the neighborhood and by adding more families it would increase the density.  

Mr. Tyler Steele, 594 Gilbert Avenue, addressed the Commission and stated that when he was purchasing his home 
four years ago multi-family houses were a concern.  He moved from Arizona where there were many multi-family 



5        

neighborhoods and he bought his home because it was not in one.  He feels that the whole neighborhood's house 
values will come done.  Mr. Steele is opposed to the application. 

Ms. Michele Mastropetre, 69 Ingleside Drive, addressed the Commission and read a statement.  She would like to 
see the application denied.  She feels it would set a precedent because three family homes are not allowed in an R-4 
zone.  If approved it would have an adverse impact in a neighborhood of single family homes.  The ZBA had 
denied the request and the homeowner still proceeded with the use as a three family home.  She feels it would send 
the wrong message to the residents of the town.   Ms. Mastropetre asked that the application be denied.   

Ms. Jeanine Guerreri, 601 Gilbert Avenue, addressed the Commission and stated that she agrees with Ms. 
Mastropetre.  Also, she feels there is not enough off street parking available for the site.  Previously the there had 
been students living at the site and they all had cars creating safety concerns for the children in the neighborhood.  
The multiple families living in the house did not take in their trash cans and trash would blow out of them.  Ms. 
Guerreri said she recently made some changes to her home and paid a lot of money to get permits and do it 
correctly.  Ms. Guerreri is opposed to the application.  

Mr. Donald Lynch, 561 Gilbert Avenue, addressed the Commission and stated that he also recently purchased his 
home.   He feels that people living in multi-family dwellings do not  respect what they do not own.  He purchased 
his home because it was a single family neighborhood in an R-4 zone.  Mr. Lynch has concerns about the parking 
issues.  Mr. Lynch is opposed to the application.  

Mr. Pellegrino said that the application is not to try and change the zone.  If a hardship can be shown you should be 
granted a variance.  This application would not set a precedent because variances are done on a case by case basis.  
Mr. Pellegrino stated that the house has been used as a three family home for many years and it does not change the 
character of the neighborhood.  Outwardly, there would be no difference if the variance were to be granted.  The 
parking issues have been addressed and Mr. Pellegrino submitted a photograph of the parking area and reviewed it.  

Mr. DiMonico addressed the Commission with regard to the house being a three family.   

Ms. Masi reviewed the previous variance that was denied and the minutes of the 1977 meeting with the 
Commission.  The Commission discussed with Ms. Masi and Mr. Lee the history of the house and its use.  Ms. 
Masi made note that she had notified the previous owner of the violation and he chose to misrepresent the use when 
the house was being sold. 

Mr. Tyler Steele made note that Mr. Pellegrino had made a point to state that tomorrow nothing changes if the 
variance is approved.  However, what is on the books will have changed and the property will be a three family 
home which affects property values for the people in the neighborhood.  Mr. Steele said that six cars can park in 
the driveway but some still park in the street.   

Ms. Dove asked how the third floor apartment is accessed.  Mr. DiMonico stated that there is an external staircase.  

Mr. Vita closed the Public Hearing.  

5) 13-6508  31 Duel Drive, Requesting variances: Section 620.b to permit 675 sq ft for an accessory 
   apartment where only 600 sq ft is allowed.  Section 620.e to permit a bathroom outside the 
   accessory apartment.  R-3 zone, Ronald & Geraldine Remer, Applicant.          

Ms. Geraldine Remer, Owner, addressed the Commission and reviewed the application.  She stated that when the 
house was purchased 15 years ago the accessory apartment existed and she did not know it was not properly 
permitted.  Her mother had lived in the apartment for 10 years and now it is used for an occasional guest.  Ms. 
Remer and her husband Ron Remer did not learn of the issues until they were selling the house.  Ms. Remer 
thanked Ms. Holly Masi, Zoning Enforcement Officer and Ms. Stacy Shellard, Clerk of the Commission for their 



6        

assistance with the application.  Ms. Remer stated that the sale of the house is currently under contract and the new 
owners would like to use the accessory apartment for their parents.  Ms. Remer submitted pictures of the accessory 
apartment which show the bathroom located outside of the apartment which suggests that family members would 
occupy the unit.  She is aware of the concern from the neighbors about student housing, but the regulations require 
that the owner of the house is required to live on the premises which would most likely prevent the house being 
rented to students. 

Mr. Chorney asked Ms. Masi to clarify the accessory apartment regulations.  Ms. Masi reviewed the regulations 
and stated that specifically the owner of the home must live on the premises.  She said that when the homeowners 
became aware that the apartment was not properly permitted they worked with the planning office.  The 
Commission had a lengthy discussion on what makes an accessory apartment and the need for this variance request 
with the planning staff.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments in favor of the application:  

Mr. Michael Dorney, 65 Hodder Drive, addressed the Commission and stated that he has contracted to purchase the 
home.  It is his intent to have his wife's parents occupy the accessory apartment.  He plans on living in the home for 
at least 30 years and also to have more children.  Mr. Dorney feels that his in-laws will be comfortable with the 
current set up and he does not want them to have to pay rent elsewhere.  Mr. Dorney stated that he comes from 
New York where this type of set up is common.  He purchased the home because he would like to stay in Hamden.  

Mr. Richard Altieri, 65 Duel Drive, addressed the Commission and stated that the neighbors are worried about 
students moving into the house.  He would be in favor of the application if parents were to move in as stated, 
however, he would want a guarentee.  Mr. Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney, said that as a practical matter 
because of the location of the bathroom, it most likely would be a relative using the apartment.  He noted that the 
Commission could put a condition not to rent to students.   Ms. Remer and Mr. Dorney both stated they would 
accept that as a condition of approval.  Mr. Vita asked if the bathroom door were moved and the apartment area 
changed to under 600 feet could they rent to students without the condition.  Mr. Dan Kops, Assistant Town 
Planner stated yes.  

Mr. William Burns, 297 Dunbar Hill Road, President of the Dunbar Hill Neighborhood Association, addressed the 
Commission and stated that the same problem exists as it does at 654 Gilbert Avenue.  Mr. Vita explained that as 
the zoning regulations exist an accessory apartment is allowed if it complies with the regulations.  Mr. Burns stated 
he would not have a problem with the application if there is a condition for use by family only and that it is 
recorded on the land records.  Mr. Burns feels that the ZBA has a responsibility to the town to review the zoning 
regulations and make them more specific.  Mr. Vita explained if the variance is granted the conditions of approval 
run with the land and are filed on the land records.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments against the application: 

Ms. Bonnie Czuchra, 30 Duel Drive, addressed the Commission and stated that the people who originally built the 
home used the second kitchen for canning.  The downstairs had a fireplace and was used by the kids.  The area was 
not intended to be used as an in-law apartment.  Ms. Czuchra said she knew that the current owner's parents lived 
with them.  She has no objections to the variance being granted if they are not allowed to rent to students.  Ms. 
Czuchra stated that the neighborhood is a quiet neighborhood and she does not want to see the house destroyed.   

Mr. Richard Altieri, 65 Duel Drive, addressed the Commission and stated he would have no objection to the 
variance if there is a condition of approval not allowing students to rent.  

Mr. Dorney asked how the condition of approval would affect him if he were to sell the home.  Mr. Lee said the 
variance and condition run with the property.  It will have to be record on the land record and would be binding on 
the seller, owner and future owners.  



7        

Mr. Vita closed the Public Hearing.  

6) 13-6509  30 Oregon Ave, Requesting a variance: Section 652.1, Table 6.3 to allow a 6 unit multi-family 
dwelling where none is allowed.  T-4 zone, Gerald Ryan, Applicant

Mr. Gerald Ryan, Attorney, addressed the Commission and reviewed the history of the property.  He explained that 
there is a Special Permit Application pending for this site because it was determined that a multi family dwelling is 
not allowed on this street.  It is located in a T-4 zone, however, only on certain streets such as Dixwell Avenue 
which is only 50 yards away from the property.  Mr. Ryan stated that the multi-family dwelling would enhance the 
property and create affordable housing.  The Commission discussed similar properties that have multi-family 
dwellings.  

Mr. Nelson asked about parking on the site.  Mr. Ryan stated that parking on the site will comply with the zoning 
regulations.  He said that he has worked with the Planning Staff on this application.  Mr. Nelson asked how many 
bedrooms would each unit have.  Mr. Ryan replied that they will be one bedroom units.  Mr. Vita asked what the 
planning staff's thoughts are on the character of the property as a multi-family use.  Mr. Kops explained that the 
ZBA must determine the intent of the regulation from which the applicant is requesting relief.  The intent of the 
regulation is to make sure that multi-family housing is located on streets where there is public transportation.  The 
attorney indicated that the property is close to Dixwell Avenue.  The Planning & Zoning Commission will 
determine if there will be an impact to the area if the site were to be used for multi-family housing.  Mr. Vita asked 
Mr. Kops if he feels the request for multi-family on this site is in character with the neighborhood and Mr. Kops 
replied yes.  Ms. Masi stated that the variance is being requested because it is not allowed on the street.  If the 
property were one block up and on Dixwell Avenue a variance would not be needed.  

Ms. Dove thought the T-4 zone was more restricted.  Ms. Masi replied that certain zones have restrictions to allow 
multi-family only on certain streets.  

Ms. Dove asked what the hardship is.  Mr. Ryan stated that the property is located in a zone directed for mixed use 
and is only one block away from Dixwell Avenue.  Ms. Dove stated that we, as a Town, spent time on the zoning 
regulations and specifically did not include Oregon Avenue.  Mr. Ryan stated that an office building can be built on 
this property, but it would not be a good use of the property.  He feels that the Town's comprehensive plan would 
want residential located on this site as opposed to commercial.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments in favor of the application: 

Mr. Mike Crocco, 730 Circular Avenue, addressed the Commission and reviewed the properties that he owns.  He 
stated that the lot is overgrown, and a junk yard because of the property across the street from it.  He reviewed the 
neighborhood and said that the property has been a mess for 20 years.  The applicant has been keeping the property 
maintained.  Mr. Crocco said that when the Town approved condominiums on the corner of Manila Avenue and 
Treadwell Street the owner could not sell them, and they are now apartments.  Nearby there is a nine space parking 
lot  and it is never used.  The neighborhood kids use it to play basketball.  Mr. Vita asked Mr. Crocco what he 
thinks of the application.  Mr. Crocco stated he has no objections to the proposed use.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments against the application:

Ms. Linda Weed, 1429-1435 Dixwell Avenue, addressed the Commission and stated that the parking lot Mr. 
Crocco spoke of is near the Farmington Canal.  She said that Oregon Avenue is a small street and she described the 
street and its history.  She explained that the approval for the office building at this location would have had 
parking underneath the building.  She does not feel that there is enough parking for six apartments. 

Mr. Joseph Weed, 1429-1435 Dixwell Avenue, addressed the Commission and stated that he must block his 
parking area so that the traffic on the street does not use it.  



8        

Ms. Weed said that there is a lot of traffic generated on Oregon Avenue because of the church that is there.  

Mr. Vita expalined that concerns with the traffic should be directed to the Planning & Zoning Commission.  The 
applicant would be required to meet the regulations with regards to parking.  

Ms. Weed said that having six more families on the street would create a problem with the sewer in the area which 
is old.  When there is a problem with the sewer it backs up into her building and the Town does not want to know 
about the sewer.  Ms. Weed feels there is not enough parking for her.  Ms. Weed does not feel that the six multi-
family units should be allowed.

Mr. Weed said that the last time the sewer backed up he needed a crew of six to clear the property.  

Ms.Weed says a hardship would be created for her business if this request is approved.  The lot is sized for a one 
family home.  Ms. Weed stated that she is opposed to the application and that the entire area looks like a junkyard. 
Six units that would house 6 families or students would create chaos.  

Mr. Tom Matthews, 15 Oregon Avenue, addressed the Commission and stated that his home is a single family.  He 
objects to a residential building being built on the street.  The parking in the area is impossible and creates a safety 
hazard.  When there is an event at the Church, Mr. Matthews is unable to exit his driveway.  He also has a sewer 
issue in front of his house.  Mr. Matthews does not feel there is a hardship to grant this variance and would like the 
lot to be kept commercial.  

Mr. Vita closed the Public Hearing.  

 

B.  Regular Meeting

a. Discussion and voting on Public Hearing items.

13-6503

Mr. Nelson made the motion to approve the Application.  Ms. Dove seconded the motion.  Mr. Nelson stated that 
the  shed  will  be  located  in  the  rear  yard.   He  said  that  the  lot  coverage  is  already non-conforming  and the 
impervious coverage will only increase by 1.2 percent for the small shed.  The motion passed unanimously.  

13-6505

Mr. Nelson made the motion to approve the Application.  Mr. Chorney seconded the motion.  Mr. Nelson stated 
that the car manufacturers are requiring the dealerships to have separate signs.  There is five hundred feet of 
frontage and the signs will be placed and set apart.  The square footage of the signs will be less than the original 
signs.   There is also a safety issue and the signs also give warning to someone coming up or down the hill to locate 
the entrance.  The motion passed unanimously.  

13-6506

Mr. Nelson made the motion to approve the application with the following condition:  The two family house 
remains a two family house and there be no increase in density.   Ms. Dove seconded the motion.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that the structures will remain the same and would allow the owner to remain in the house if he decides to 
sell the business.   The motion passed unanimously.  



9        

13-6507
Mr. Chorney made the motion to deny the Application.  Mr. nelson seconded the motion.  Mr. Chorney stated 
that it is unfortunate that an investigation was not done prior to the purchase of the house to determine if it was a 
legal three family home.  The original use was a two family house.  The applicant stated that the hardship is that the 
third floor is not being used.  Mr. Chorney does not feel this is a hardship because the third floor can go back to the 
original way it was used when it was a two family house.  The motion passed unanimously.  

13-6508

Mr. Chorney made the motion to approve the Application with the following conditions:  The accessory 
apartment is to be used only by related family members.  The accessory apartment cannot be used for student 
housing.  Mr. Nelson seconded the motion.   The Commission discussed the use of an accessory apartment being 
occupied by non-family members if the bathroom were to be located within the unit vs. being occupied by a family 
member because the bathroom is located on the outside of the unit.   The motion passed unanimously.  

13-6509

Mr. Chorney made the motion to approve the Application.  He stated that the T-4 zone is restricted to certain 
streets and that this property is located close enough.  The intent of the restriction is to have mixed-use accessible 
to transportation.  Other issues that were raised at this meeting will need to be discussed and determined by the  
Planning  & Zoning Commission.   The  Commission  discussed  the  hardship,  the  zoning  regulations,  approved 
amendments to the zoning map and the best use of the property.  They also discussed the Special Permit application 
that  is  pending.   Mr.  Nelson  seconded  the  motion.   Mr.  Chorney  and  Mr.  Nelson  voted  in  favor  of  the  
application.  Mr. Vita, Ms. Dove and Ms. Carroll voted against the application.  Therefore,  the motion failed.  

                                 b.          Approve Minutes of July 18, 2013          

Mr. Chorney made the motion to approve the Minutes of July 18, 2013.  Ms. Carroll seconded the motion.  Mr.  
Chorney, Ms. Carroll, Ms. Dove and Mr. Vita voted in favor of the motion. Therefore, the motion passed.  

                                 c.          Old Business          

There was none.  

d.          New Business

Mr. Chorney stated that there are vehicles with for sale signs located at a multi-family home located near Lee Street  
and across from the Post Office.  Ms. Masi stated that she has spoken with the Chief of Police and he is handling  
this matter.  Mr. Chorney also stated that there is a for sale sign located in the right of way on the corner of Dixwell  
Avenue and Mather Street.  Ms. Masi said that she will refer it to the Litter Enforcement Officer.  

e.          Adjournment

Mr.  Nelson  made  the  motion  to  adjourn.   Mr.  Vita  seconded  the  motion.   Therefore,  the  motion  passed  
unanimously. 

The meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m.

Submitted by: ______________________________________________
Stacy Shellard, Clerk of the Commission 


	A. Public Hearing

